
 
GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES BOARD 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
September 26, 2024 

 
Open to the public 

9:00 AM Garfield Township Hall – Upstairs Main Hall 
3848 Veterans Dr, Traverse City, MI 49684 

                                                                                                                                                           
Persons with disabilities which the foregoing opportunities for participation will not address should 
contact Darcey Gratton at (231) 932-3010 or dgratton@gtpavilions.org with questions or concerns.   

AGENDA 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER  
 

2. ROLL CALL  
 

3. FIRST PUBLIC COMMENT 
Any person shall be permitted to address a meeting of the Grand Traverse County Department of 
Health and Human Services Board which is required to be open to the public under the provisions 
of the Michigan Open Meetings Act, as amended.  (MCLA 15.261, et.seq.)  Public comment shall 
be carried out in accordance with the following Board Rules and Procedures: 

1. Any person wishing to address the Board shall state his or her name and address. 
2. Persons may address the Board on matters which are relevant to Grand Traverse 

Pavilions issues. 
3. No person shall be allowed to speak more than once on the same matter, excluding time 

needed to answer Board Members questions.  The Chairperson shall control the amount 
of time each person shall be allowed to speak, which shall not exceed three (3) minutes. 

a) Chairperson may, at his or her discretion, extend the amount of time any person is 
allowed to speak. 

b) Whenever a group wishes to address the Board, the Chairperson may require that 
the group designate a spokesperson; the Chairperson shall control the amount of 
time the spokesperson shall be allowed to speak, which shall not exceed fifteen 
(15) minutes. 

 
The Board shall not comment or respond to a person who is addressing the Board.  Silence or 
non-response from the Board should not be interpreted as disinterest or disagreement by the 
Board. 
 
Please be respectful and refrain from personal or political attacks. 
 

4. COUNTY LIAISON REPORT 
 

5. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

6. CONSENT CALENDAR 
The purpose of the consent calendar is to expedite business by grouping items to be dealt with by 

one Board motion without discussion.  Any member of the Board, or staff may ask that any item 

on the consent calendar be removed and placed elsewhere on the agenda for discussion.  Such 

requests will be automatically respected. 

 

 



If any item is not removed from the consent calendar, the item on the agenda is approved by a 

single Board action adopting the consent calendar. 

 

A.  Review and File           HANDOUT# 
(1)       Draft Minutes of the 8/29/24 Board Meeting     1 
(2)       Closed Minutes of the 8/29/24 Board Meeting         Handout 
(3)       August Resident Council Minutes      2 

 
7. ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT CALENDAR 

 
8. CHAIRMAN REPORT         Verbal 

 

9. SERVICE EXCELLANCE AWARDS        3 
 

10. GRAND TRAVERSE MEDICAL CARE  
A.  General Information           

(1)       Cottages Master Plan Update      Verbal 
(2)       Simply the Best Award       4 
(3)       Annual State Survey and Life Safety Inspection    Verbal 
(4)       Union Negotiations         Verbal 
(5)       Preliminary 2025 Budget Update      Verbal 

   
B.  Chief Executive Officer Board Report      5 

 
C.  Business 

(1)    Financials         6 

(2)       Request for Purchase – Pool Resurfacing      7 

 

D.       General Discussion 
(1)  

  
E. Medical Staff 

(1)       Kaitlyn Vanias, MD        8 
             

G.T.P. Announcements   
(1)     Next Board Meeting – October 31, 2024 

      
11. SECOND PUBLIC COMMENT 

Refer to Rules under First Public Comment above. 
 

12. ADJOURNMENT 



DRAFT  

 

1 
 

GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES BOARD 

1000 Pavilions Circle, Traverse City, MI 49684 
 

MINUTES OF THE AUGUST 29, 2024 MEETING 

 
PRESENT: Mary Marois, Carol Crawford         Board  
  Gerard Bodalski, Darcey Gratton        Staff  
  TJ Andrews                 Commission 
 
ABESENT: Haider Kazim           Board       
         
GUESTS: Jeff Segal of Warner Norcross & Judd (virtual) 

 
The regular meeting of the Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human Services 
Board was called to order at 9:00am by Board Chair Mary Marois at Garfield Township.    

 
First Public Comment - none 
 
County Liaison Report – Andrews shared discussions of the most recent County Board of 
Commissioner (BOC) meetings. The most recent Ad hoc committee was held at the Pavilions 
on August 26, 2024. 
 
Approval of Agenda – Chair Marois requested to add D. Medical Staff (17) Rebecca Aaron, 
(18) Ashley Olson, (19) Margaret Haglund, (20) Kali McLeod, (21) Krystal Goudreau.  Motion 
was made by Crawford to approve the agenda as amended, seconded by Marois.  Motion 
carried.   
     
The purpose of the Consent Calendar is to expedite business by grouping items to be dealt with 
by one Board motion without discussion.  Any member of the Board or staff may ask that any 
item on the Consent Calendar be removed and placed elsewhere on the agenda for discussion.  
Such requests will be automatically respected.  

 
REVIEW AND FILE 
  

(1)       Draft Minutes of the 7/25/24 Board Meeting 
(2)       Closed Minutes of the 7/25/24 Board Meeting 
(3)       June Resident Council Minutes 
(4)       July Resident Council Minutes 

 
Motion was made by Crawford to approve the Consent Calendar as presented.  Motion 
seconded by Marois.  Motion carried.   
 
Items Removed From Consent Calendar – none 
 
Chairman Report – Marois noted that the board was pleased with the progress of 2024 
operations.   
 
Service Excellence Awards – Marois reviewed July Service Excellence Awards. 
  

Page 3 of 42

dgratton
Text Box
1



DRAFT  

 

2 
 

2nd Quarter Foundation Financials – Bodalski provided the second quarter Foundation 
Financials with no questions by the Board. 
 
Cottage Master Plan – Bodalski shared the Request for Proposal was published in July with 
four firms submitting proposals.  A committee was created to review and interview each firm 
who recommended that the Foundation Board engage Eckert Wordell Architects to assess the 
condition of the Cottages.  Bodalski shared that during the month of August two architects have 
started work with their estimate which included a historical perspective.  Bodalski stated the 
project is expected to be completed by December 1, 2024.   
 
Longevity Health Care Update – Bodalski shared that Longevity Health Plan is a Medicare 
Advantage Plan approved by CMS for additional benefits for residents in a skilled nursing facility 
and will be available for residents October 1, 2024.  Bodalski stated the plan will bring additional 
Nurse Practitioners to assist staff with quality of care.   
 
2024 Concert on the Lawn Update – Bodalski reported that this year’s concert on the lawn 
series was a successful season with a net of $29,613 after expenses.  Bodalski stated overall 
the weather was great with no cancellations.  The board recognized Clayton Wagatha, Life 
Enrichment Coordinator, for all of his work with making this year’s series successful.     
  
Outpatient Testimonial – Bodalski reviewed a testimonial shared in the packet. 
 
Governor’s Award of Excellence – Medal of Achievement – Bodalski shared that the 
Pavilions received the Governor’s Award of Excellence for outstanding achievements in 
improving the quality of healthcare in a nursing home for increased Flu and COVID vaccinations 
rates and earned a Medal of Achievement.  All award winners will be recognized in Lansing at a 
ceremony in September.     
 
Chief Executive Officer Report – Bodalski reviewed the monthly report for July and highlighted 
improved census and finances.    
 
Financial Report – Bodalski presented the financial operations and social accountability reports 
for July 2024 and answered board members’ questions.  Motion made by Crawford to accept 
the financial operations report as presented, seconded by Marois.  Motion carried.  Roll Call - 
Marois – yes, Crawford – yes 
 
Request to Purchase – Replacement of Bus – Bodalski reviewed the request to purchase a 
large bus after an accident of no-fault to the Pavilions.  The current payout from the insurance 
company is $95,800.  Three bids were received to replace the bus.  Bodalski recommends 
Tesco as the winning bid to do fastest time frame for delivery at $134,900 knowing that the 
current payout from the insurance company is $95,800.   Bodalski requested for the Board to 
approve $40,000 to cover the difference and in order to put 10% down needed to order.   Motion 
was made by Crawford to approve covering the difference of $40,000 and moving forward with 
purchasing a large bus from TESCO.  Motion was seconded by Marois.  Motion carried. 
 
Medical Staff - The Board reviewed the requests to have attending/consulting privileges for the 
following medical staff to allow access for telehealth with sound physicians during the off hours 
of 5pm-8am in addition to access for Longevity’s Nurse Practitioners to provide services as 
recommended by Medical Director Dr. April Kurkowski, D.O.   
 

Page 4 of 42



DRAFT  

 

3 
 

Marois noted the board has reviewed the full packets provided for credentialling the following 
names. 
 
(1)Sesha Sailu Adusumilli (12)Daisy-Scarlett MacCallum 
(2)Farman Ali (13)Alexander Perumkunnil Mathai 
(3)Sean Arora (14)Elizabeth Lenora Smith 
(4)Shannon Arora (15)Jeffrey Valice 
(5)Garrick Collins (16)Jayson Alan Weir 
(6)Kenya Hanspard (17)Rebecca Aaron 
(7)Anthony Holstine (18)Ashely Olson 
(8)Javed Syed Iqbal (19)Margaret Haglund 
(9)Anne Katherine Petersen (20)Kali McLeod 
(10)Meenalochani Narayanan (21)Krystal Goudreau 
(11)Emily Ngoc Nguyen  
 
Motion was made by Crawford to approve Attending/Consulting privileges as presented, 
seconded by Marois.  Motion carried. 
 
 
Grand Traverse Pavilions Announcements  

(1) Next Board Meeting September 29, 2024  
 
Second Public Comment  
Linda Pepper 
McKenzie Beeman 
 
Motion was made by Crawford seconded by Marois to go into Closed Session at 9:59 am for the 
purpose of Closed session pursuant to section 8(e) of the Open Meetings Act, to consult with 
our attorney regarding trial or settlement strategy in connection with pending litigation, DHHS 
and the Grand Traverse Pavilions Foundation Board v PACE North. 
 
Segal in 10:30 am 
 
Motion was made by Crawford to come out of Closed Session at 10:56 am, seconded by 
Marois.  Motion carried. 
 
Meeting adjourned at 10:56 am 
 
Signatures:  
 
 
 

Mary Marois – Chair 
Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human Services Board 
 
Date:                                   Approved 
                                   Corrected and Approved 
 

Page 5 of 42



PAVILIONS RESIDENT COUNCIL MEETING  
August 15, 2024 

 
The August 2024 meeting of the Grand Traverse Pavilions Resident Council was called 
to order at 11:00 am in the Multi-Purpose Room by Hanna Wooters. 
 
All residents were welcomed. 
The residents waived their right to a closed meeting. 
The Lord’s Prayer and the Pledge of Allegiance were recited. 
 
Members present: Residents are marked “X” throughout the minutes. 
 
Birch Pavilion: 4 residents attended. 
 
Cherry Pavilion: 4 residents attended. 
 
Dogwood Pavilion: 3 residents attended. 
 
Staff members were introduced: 
Hanna Wooters, CTRS, Life Enrichment 
Breanna Broering, LMSW, Birch Pavilion Social Work 
Liz Payne, RN, Director of Nursing  
Christian Anderson, Director of Culinary Services - Forefront Dining Services 
Lisa Telling, Environmental Services Director  
 
Guest: American Sign Language (ASL) interpreter 
  
Old Business: 

Residents were updated on the make-up date for Dollar Tree outing, scheduled for 
August 26th.  
 
New Business: 

Hanna made the following announcements:  
 

- Residents were informed of updates on the new bus and repairs made to the 
small bus for outings.  

- Last day of Concerts on the lawn is 8/15/24 
 
Outings for September 2024: 
 
Monday, August 26th – Dollar Tree Make Up Date 
 Board bus at 10:30 am, return pickup to come home at 12:30pm  
Friday, September 13th – Culvers Lunch Outing 

Board bus at 11:00 am, return pickup to come home at 1:30 pm 
Wednesday, September 18th – Walmart Shopping 

Page 6 of 42

dgratton
Text Box
2



 Board bus at 10:00 am, return pickup to come home at 12:00 pm  
 
 
Special Events for September 2024: 
Friday, September 6th- Mass with Father Joe at 11:00 am 
Sunday, September 8th- Salvation Army Music at 2:00 pm 
Wednesday, September 18th- John Denner Music at 11:00 am 
Thursday, September 19th- Resident Council Meeting at 11:00 am 
 

Resident Group Interview Questions: 

Hanna discussed with the attending residents that are 12 resident rights that are 
reviewed during the group interview with the State Surveyors during our annual survey, 
and today we will be reviewing Costs. 
 
Costs:  

• Are you, or your representative, informed by the facility about which items and 
services are available and related changes? 
 

- Residents reported family is aware.  
- Residents informed they may speak with a social worker or financial 

management to discuss concerns/issues.  
- If there was any change in these items that you must pay for, were you or your 

representative informed? 
- All residents present said yes.  

 
 

1.  Discussion regarding food temperature and receiving HS snacks. 

The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions: 
 

- Residents were made aware of additional salad options on alternative menu. 
- No additional concerns noted.  
 
 
 

2.  Discussion regarding the cleanliness of the facility and laundry being returned 

promptly. 

The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions: 
 

- Two residents requested laundry to be picked up more frequently or daily. 
Environmental services to follow up.  

- Resident reported frustration with timing of bed being made, she would 
appreciate an earlier time.  

Page 7 of 42



- No additional concerns 
 
3.  Discussion regarding room temperature. 

The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions:  

- Resident reported new intervention in room to monitor room temperature, ES is 
tracking for consistency. 

- Resident reported temperature is too cold in her room, ES to be notified.  
 
4.  Discussion regarding nursing care. 

The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions: 

- Resident reported increased wait time to receive sanitary supplies, nursing to 
follow up.  

- No additional concerns were noted.  
 
 
 
5.  Discussion regarding call lights being answered in a timely manner. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions: 

- No concerns reported at this time.  
 

 
 

6.  Discussion regarding receiving showers as needed/as requested. 

The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions:              

- No concerns noted with showers.  
   

 
 

7. Discussion regarding the night time noise level on your Pavilion. 

The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions: 

- Two residents reported music coming from the halls after 10 pm. Nursing to 
follow up.  

 
 

The floor was opened for additional comments: 

- Resident requested the courtyard plants to be watered more frequently. 
- Resident would like an in house clinic schedule- Nursing to follow up.  

Page 8 of 42



- Director of Nursing shared with residents of resident/family survey for feedback 
coming in October to discuss process improvements and concerns.  

- Resident requested a monthly meal menu included in the Pavilions Post.  
- Resident requested Dominic Fortune to play at next years concerts on the lawn.  

 
 

The next Pavilions Resident Council meeting will be held on Thursday, September 19th 
at 11:00am in the Multi-Purpose Room. Hanna asked for a volunteer to read over and 
sign the August 2024 minutes, and X said that she would do this. The Pavilions 
Resident Council Meeting was adjourned at 11:45 am by Hanna, seconded by X. 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
______________________            
Hanna Wooters, CTRS     
Recreational Therapist                
 
 
______________________ 
____________, Cherry Pavilion Resident 
 

Page 9 of 42



Elm Resident Council Minutes 
Meeting Held- July  22nd 2024 

 
The March meeting of the Grand Traverse Pavilions Elm Resident Council was called to order at 
11:00am in the Elm Common Area. 
 
Members Present: Residents are marked “X” throughout the minutes. 
12 residents attended. 
 
Staff Present: 
Susan Eldred, Recreation Therapist 
Naomi Rode, Assistant Director of Nursing 
 
Old Business:  
None 
 
New Business: 
Asked the residents if they need help do the staff help them.  
X stated “I suppose so.” X stated “yeah.” X stated “yes.”  
 
Asked the residents if they were being offered a snack before bed.  
X stated “oh yeah.”  
 
Asked the residents if the staff were respectful to the residents.  
X stated that the staff were “real good.” X stated “yeah.” 
 
Asked the residents if the food is good here.  
X, X and X all responded with “yes.” 
 
Asked the residents if the rooms were getting cleaned.  
X stated “yes getting cleaned.” X and X responded with a  “yes.” 
 
Asked the residents if their clothes are getting cleaned. 
X responded “yeah everyday.” X stated “yes.” 
 
Asked the residents if the Temperature in the room is good.  
X stated “not too bad.” X stated “yes.” 
 
Asked the residents if they have enough to do. 
X stated “yes I think so.” X stated “oh yes.” X stated “yes.” 
 
 
Questions, Suggestions, Concerns and Comments: 
The floor was open for questions, suggestions, concerns and comments.  
X stated “can’t beat what we have.” 
 
Suggestions for upcoming activities: 
Ice Cream Social 

Page 10 of 42



Milkshakes 
Make cherry pie for the baking contest 
X stated to start “a project.” 
 
 
Outings 
County Fair 
Dollar Store 
 
Meeting was closed at 11:20am 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
 
Susan Eldred, CTRS     Naomi Rode, BSN, RN  
 

Page 11 of 42



GRAND TRAVERSE PAVILIONS 

Service Excellence Award Program 

August 2024 

  

Date: 08/05/2024 
Employee: Ashley Parks 

Awarded for: Going outside to buy a resident popcorn when she had no money! 
Position: CNA 

Nominated by: Rachael Favela 

 
 
 

 

Date: 08/05/2024 
Employee: Kyle Kessler 

Awarded for: Always going above and beyond for his residents and coworkers. 
Position: CNA 

Nominated by: Ashley Parks 

 
 
 
 

Date: 08/12/2024 
Employee: Michelle Godin 

Awarded for: 
Michelle jumped in to help on a very busy day! She didn't wait to be asked or take no for 
an answer. It's great working with her! 

Position: RN 

Nominated by: Erica Harpe 

 
 
 
 

Date: 08/12/2024 
Employee: Trinity Olsen 

Awarded for: 

Thank you for being so kind & empathic to one of our residents.  She told you she 
couldn't stay in the dining room but would like a slice of white bread. You helped 
convince her to at least eat a PB&J. You made & delivered it so efficiently, which helped 
calm her down. Thank you for providing an effective and caring service to our residents 
& staff. You are so appreciated! 

Position: Forefront Dining Services 

Nominated by: Mackenzie Beeman 

 
 
 
 

Date: 08/19/2024 
Employee: Lisa Bernatche 

Awarded for: 

Lisa was so quick to respond to her resident who had an ACOC. She called a code 
nurse quickly and clearly. She ensured not only her resident but also her team was 
cared for. When the family arrived, she cared for them too, providing comfort and 
compassion. If Lisa was my loved one's nurse, I'd be at peace knowing she gave care 
as if they were her own family. She's wonderful to work with and I'm proud to work 
alongside her as a nurse. 

Position:  RN 

Nominated by: Naomi Rode 

Page 12 of 42

dgratton
Text Box
3



 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Date: 08/19/2024 
Employee: Mackenzie St. John 

Awarded for: 
Thank you for being so ambitious, it's a breath of fresh air! You did not hesitate to jump 
right in and help when/where needed. We all enjoyed your pleasant demeanor and 
positive energy on Dogwood. Thank you for all that you do! 

Position:  UW 

Nominated by: Mackenzie Beeman 

Date: 08/26/2024 
Employee: Rhonda Tomlinson 

Awarded for: 

Thank you, Rhonda, for being so considerate & taking the initiative to take a new 
resident's clothing down to the laundry department to be labeled right away, rather than 
make her wait the average 2 day turn around. I know how happy she'll be to be in her 
own clothes now! It's small details like that, that make a difference! 

Position:  CNA 

Nominated by: Mackenzie Beeman 

Date: 08/26/2024 
Employee: Chauna Seekamp 

Awarded for: 

Outstanding customer service.  Chauna was our Community Coordinator last weekend 
and had several difficult situations arise.  She was able to stay calm, positive, and 
professional.  Multiple family members recognized her for her outstanding 
communication and care. 

Position:  RN 

Nominated by: Liz Payne 

Page 13 of 42



Thank You for voting us 
#1 BEST WELLNESS CENTER 

& #3 IN SENIOR SERVICES

1000 PAVILIONS CIRCLE, TRAVERSE CITY | 231-932-3000 | GTPAVILIONS.ORG
Page 14 of 42

dgratton
Text Box
4



 
 

TO:  Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human Services Board 
 
FROM: Gerard Bodalski, CEO/Administrator       
       
RE:  August CEO/Administrator Report 
 
Census (Average Daily Census) 
 Sep-MTD Aug-24 July-24 June-24 May-24 Apr-24 Mar-24 

Medical Care 
Facility (MCF) 

168 167 164 166 168 162 163 

Cottages 62 63 60 57 54 54 54 

 
MCF Aug-24 July-24 June-24 May-24 Apr-24 Mar-24 

Admissions & Re-admits 63 63 55 68 68 65 

Discharges 61 59 62 61 66 65 

MMC Referrals 215 208 169 166 183 180 

MMC Denied 41 38 27 37 35 27 

Transfers to LTC 2 3 3 2 3 3 

 
Cottages Aug-24 July-24 June-24 May-24 Apr-24 Mar-24 

Admissions 3 3 5 2 3 3 

Respite 6 5 4 6 3 7 

Discharges  0 2 1 2 2 1 

 
Finance 

 August-24 July-24 June-24 May-24 Apr-24 Mar-24 

Combined Net Income ***$1,101,297 $44,212 $77,019 $178,240 $66,406 $9,663 

MCF   
Net Income 

$122,407 $67,724 $106,343 $140,058 $102,075 $51,320 

Cottage  
Net Income 

$(21,110) $(22,511) $(29,324) **$38,182 $(35,669) $(41,657) 

Cash Balance $3,506,346 $3,438,728 $3,317,575 $2,971,674 $2,970,769 *$2,737,615 

A/R Days Sales 
Outstanding 

60 54 54 55 48 57 

* Third payroll of $700,000 and AR increase of $579,000. 
**Scholarship funds of $70,939.36 received from GTP Foundation. 
***Notified of cost settlement from 10/1/22 – 9/30/23 of $1,024,304. 

  

MCF Operating Expenses PPD History   

 Aug-24 July-24 June-24 May-24 Apr-24 Mar-24 

MCF Operating Expenses 
Actual PPD 

$451.76 $456.77 $465.00 $463.24 $458.21 $463.13 

MCF Operating Expenses 
Budgeted PPD 

$452.94 $452.94 $457.00 $452.94 $456.71 $452.94 

Variance 
(unfavorable)/favorable 

$1.19 $(3.83)  $(8.12)  $(10.29)  $(1.50)  $(10.19)  

 
           

Page 15 of 42

dgratton
Text Box
5

dgratton
Text Box

dgratton
Text Box
$1,122,407



2 
 

Facility Reported Incidents 
 Aug-24 July-24 June-24 May-24 Apr-24 Mar-24 

Medical Care Facility 5 6 4 2 1 1 

 
Wellness Center 

Numbers of Patients seen: Aug-24 July-24 June-24 May-24 Apr-24 Mar-24 

Medicare A 48 43 37 38 34 31 

Medicare Advantage Skilled 35 39 38 43 40 41 

Private Insurance: Inpatient 5 5 2 3 5 5 

Private Pay: Inpatient 2 3 1 0 1 0 

Auto: Inpatient 0 0 0 1 1 1 

Med A/Rehab Inpatient 
Totals 

90 90 78 85 81 78 

       

Medicaid 2 0 0 1 0 0 

Medicare B: Inpatient 38 39 7 38 38 24 

Medicare B Advantage: 
Inpatient 

10 7 40 13 14 16 

Med B Inpatient Totals 50 46 47 52 52 40 

       

Medicare B: Outpatient 21 21 22 22 23 14 

Medicare B Advantage: 
Outpatient 

52 60 46 46 47 33 

Private Insurance: 
Outpatient 

17 18 17 21 20 17 

Work Compensation: 
Outpatient 

0 0 0 1 1 1 

Private Pay: Outpatient 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Auto: Outpatient 0 0 0 0 0 2 

Outpatient Totals 90 99 85 90 91 69 

       

Numbers of Wellness 
Center Visits: 

      

Aquatic inpatients therapy 
visits 

18 2 21 35 17 27 

Aquatic aftercare visits per 
month 

341 325 269 344 303 289 

Aquatic outpatient PT visits 170 206 165 170 195 117 

Aquatic group class 
participants 

86 85 57 74 66 69 

Land therapy visits (PT, OT, 
SLP) 

253 170 214 262 179 169 

Total Outpatient therapy 
visit 

423 462 379 432 395 302 

       

Outpatient aquatic therapy 
revenue 

47,997.47 53,398.88 46,180.65 49,719.42 51,850.07 39,056.20 

Aftercare monthly revenue 3410 3250 2690 3,400 3,030 2,890 

Aquatic group class 
revenue 

1720 1700 1140 1,480 1,320 1,380 

Cottages visits 59 61 59 45 49 49 

Total Wellness center 
revenue 

53,127.47 60,348.88 50,010.65 54,639.42 56,820.07 43,326.20 

 
Staffing 

 Aug-24 July-24 June-24 May-24 Apr-24 Mar-24 

Hires 2 7 21 2 8 17 

Resignations  4 8 7 6 3 6 

Page 16 of 42



3 
 

Referrals 7 9 2 8 3 4 

Total # Employees 307 311 308 303 324 322 

Sept MDT # 330 employees 
Talent Sourcing and Recruiting is underway for the following positions: CNAs, MN RN/LPNs, Occupational 
Therapist/COTA 
Significant recruitment push post Employee Appreciation Event to staff additional CNAs and Licensed Nurses 
(31 new employees hired in Sept including 7 RNs, 14 CNAs, 1 Social Services Designee) 

 
Activities 
Recreational Therapists in the life enrichment department continue to complete video chats 
throughout the month for 6 residents over FaceTime or Google Duo. 
 
Activities, Special Events and Outings that occurred in August included small group activities such as 
Bird Care; Card Group including Euchre and Uno, Word Games (Categories, Elvis Tribute Trivia and 
Name That Tune); and Creative Kitchen group baking items for mocktail hour such as confetti cake 
cookies and cheesecake. Residents engage in arts and crafts with creative coloring and sunflower 
crafts. Men’s group continues with playing card and board games as well as poker. In addition to 
helping fold the weekly Pavilions Post, residents continue to attend book club meetings with the start 
of the book The Maze this month. Residents continue to check out books from the book mobile that 
visits monthly with rotating reading material to check out. Residents participated in morning 
stretch/exercise groups throughout the week. Song circle group continues to take place throughout 
the building including Maple rehab pavilion as a morning and afternoon activity in hallways and 
common areas. Large group activities that were held included: Drum Circles, Bingo, Bingo Store, 
Bowling, Popcorn Fridays & Movies and Tuesday Mocktails. Special events that took place during 
August included a corn roast and pie baking competition for staff and residents to participate in. 
Concerts on the lawn continued with two live bands throughout the month with many residents and 
families in attendance. Tally and Bob Music group came to perform music for residents in the 
multipurpose room. Livestreaming of church services from Central United Methodist Church, 
Gaither’s Gospel and St. Francis of Assisi continues Sunday’s. Catholic church services were 
attended with Catholic Mass with Father Joe once this month, and Rosary & Holy Communion 
weekly.  Outings that residents signed up for were The Northwestern Michigan Fair, Dollar Tree and 
La Seniorita.  Two socials are held at the Rehab Pavilion each week, with snacks provided by 
Forefront Dining Services and occasional music performances by LE staff. Elm residents have 
participated in various sensory group activities including-sensory cart, coloring, crafts and garden 
group. They engage in song circle twice a week with life enrichment staff. They participate in small 
group morning exercise including afternoon strolls outside. Cognitive groups include trivia, Jeopardy, 
history, categories, book clubs and jokes. Residents participated in ice cream socials and creative 
kitchen. Residents engage in weekly intergenerational visits from the children of the Pavilions Day 
care center and various sing a long activity as well as weekly movie and popcorn activity. Elm 
residents attended an outing to the beach this month.  
 
On August 14th, Let’s Talk Food Meeting was held and on August 15th the Pavilions Resident Council 
meeting for residents was held for all pavilions to come together to meet. Elm Resident Council was 
held separately on August 19th.  
   
Environmental Services 

• Our new large bus has been ordered. We hope to have delivery before the end of the year. 

 

• We had a couple flooring projects completed throughout the month. Hawthorn 209 floor was 

replaced. Some warranty repair work on the kitchen floor was completed. We also received a 

new floor scrubber to aid the kitchen staff in cleaning.  

Page 17 of 42



4 
 

 

• Our new window blinds for the Elm Dining Room that were backordered came in and were 

installed. They look great and work very well. 

 

• We finalized the planning of our therapy pool remodel. The decking is still in good shape. We 

will have it professionally cleaned and sealed. We received a quote for the re-surfacing and the 

company can accommodate our requested dates during our holiday pool closure. Proposal 

submitted. 

 

• We are still waiting for the Front Lobby door replacement. Supplies have started to arrive. 

Once everything is in, we will be able to schedule replacement. 

 

• Our outdoors maintenance tech found a substantial leak in our big fountain. He was able to 

drain, identify the cause, create a repair plan and get the fountain back up for the remainder of 

the season. 

 

Page 18 of 42



Quality Measures Summary for August 2024 
 
The next CMS refresh of Quality Measures will be in October 2024. 
 
If our ER visits and hospital readmission numbers stay where they were last quarter, we 
expect that with the October CMS refresh our Quality Measures score will increase form 
a 2 star to a 3 star.  
 
We are making progress in tracking the following quality measures: 
 

• We anticipate that the percentage of short-stay residents who newly received an 
antipsychotic medication will be increasing from a 3 star to a 4 star as of the 
October refresh.  In April of 2024 this was a 2 star.   
 

• We anticipate that the percentage of long-stay residents who have or had a 
catheter inserted and left in their bladder is increasing from a 3 star to a 5 star as 
of the October refresh. 

 

• The number of hospitalizations per 1,000 long-stay resident days increased from 
a 3 star in April to a 4 star in July. 
 

• The number of outpatient emergency department visits per 1,000 long-stay 
resident days stayed at a 4 star in July. 

 
We still need to make improvement with the following quality measures: 
 

• Long-stay residents who receive antipsychotic medication are currently trending 
at a 1 star.    
 

• Long-stay residents experiencing one or more falls with major injury is 
anticipated staying at a 2 star. 

 
Some other quality measures are frozen and will be replaced with new measures. 
 
We are focused at monthly Quality Assurance and Performance Improvement (QAPI) 
meetings on specific quality measures and we have individual task forces in place to 
drive improvement on those quality measures.  
 
 
 

Page 19 of 42



1 

 

GRAND TRAVERSE PAVILIONS 

MEMORANDUM 

 
Financial Operations Report 

August 2024 

 

Grand Traverse Pavilions Combined 

 

REVENUE:      

The overall revenue for the Pavilions in August was $3,805,392 resulting in a 
favorable budget variance of $1,376,075.  The increased revenue is mostly 
attributable to an increase in the cost settlement receivable for the period 10/1/22 
to 9/30/2023.    
         

EXPENSES:        
The total overall operating expenses for the Pavilions in August were $2,704,095 
resulting in an unfavorable variance to budget of $328,826.  

     
NET INCOME/LOSS: 

There was net income of $1,101,297 from the combined programs of the 
Pavilions in August resulting in a favorable budget variance of $1,047,249.  

 
OPERATING CASH:     

Total cash at month-end was $3,506,346. There was a net increase (more 
brought in than was spent) in overall cash of $79,244 for the month.  
 
There were two significant anticipated cash inflows during the month.  One was 
the receipt of a portion of the Certified Public Expenditures due to the Pavilions of 
$1,169,874.  The other was the receipt of grant income of $88,993.   
 
There was one additional item added to the 2024 Irregular Cash Flow Report (in 
bold type)—the payment of legal fees related to the PACE North litigation. There 
were also minor adjustments to the expected timing.  Shown on the schedule, but 
worth highlighting, are the payments of the non-union pension bond of $329,940 
and the third payroll (approximately $700,000) in August. 
  

VOUCHERS:        
Purchase orders, invoices, checks written, and supporting documentation were 
reviewed for voucher numbers 5567-5576 for the month of August and were in 
order without exception.  

 
 
 
 
 

Page 20 of 42

dgratton
Text Box
6



2 

 

Grand Traverse Medical Care 

REVENUE:    
The census for August averaged 167 residents which was twenty-two above the 
budgeted census and three more than the prior month.  Private pay census was 
five above budget, Medicare was nine above budget, Medicaid was fourteen 
above budget and Hospice was five below the budgeted census.  The occupancy 
for August was 70% of licensed beds and 81% of available beds.    As a 
reminder, available beds increased from 182 to 207 as of July 1.  Year to date 
occupancy is 68% of licensed beds and 86% of available beds. 
 
The average rate per patient day (“PPD”) for resident revenue was $4.43 over 
budget (favorable) which was driven by a higher percentage of Medicare and 
Medicare Advantage occupancy than budgeted.   
 
Other revenue was $1,248,186 on a budget of $140,200 resulting in a favorable 
variance of $1,107,986 for the month.  Other than the aforementioned cost 
settlement revenue, the amounts were in line with prior months. 
 
Total revenue was $1,433,581 more than budgeted for the month. 
 
The Institutional Special Needs Plan sponsored by Longevity Health will go live 
on October 1, 2024.  As a reminder, for those long-term residents who chose the 
plan will benefit from systems designed to reduce hospitalizations and 
Emergency Room visitations, improve resident care, provide flexibility for 
providing supplemental therapy, improve QM measures and, depending on 
enrollment, add revenue to the organization. 
 
Medicaid rates are based on a cost report for the prior calendar year that, subject 
to certain limitations, computes a cost per day that is then paid for services 
beginning the following October 1.  GTP’s Medicaid rate was projected to 
increase approximately $30 per day beginning 10/1/2024 based on the 2023 cost 
report and estimated limitations.  The Medicaid rate letter was received in August 
and the actual increase in the Medicaid rate is $64.20 per resident day. 
 
However, Plante Moran’s calculations of our projected 2024 cost report show that 
GTP’s Medicaid rate will decrease approximately $55.40 per day beginning 
10/1/2025 resulting in a rate slightly higher than what we receive currently.   
 
The forecasted 10/1/2025 decrease (based on the anticipated 2024 cost report) 
is due to higher census (higher census dilutes the same costs per day) and lower 
costs overall due to the expiration of the 3-year cost report amortization of the 
2021 (non-union) pension plan contributions. 
 
Of further concern is there will be similar reductions to the costs per day on the 
2025 cost report due to the expiration of the 3-year cost report amortization of the 

Page 21 of 42



3 

 

2022 union pension plan contributions and continued increases in occupancy.  
This will significantly negatively impact the 10/1/2026 Medicaid rate. 
 
We continue to explore planning opportunities to mitigate these large decreases 
including working with outside counsel and Plante Moran to refine 
recommendations necessary to implement the Medicaid rate management 
strategic planning recommendation to reduce costs allocated to the Cottages.   
 
While the upcoming period from 10/1/2024 to 9/30/2025 will be a period with 
exceptional Medicaid rates, it is critical to maintain flexibility in our cost structure 
to maintain profitability going forward considering the declining per resident day 
reimbursement. 
 
A significant component of the 2021 and 2022 pension funding strategy was to 
utilize any surplus generated by the reimbursement of those pension costs to pay 
off pension related debt.  In addition to the pension bonds of $4,695,000 (non-
union) and $4,410,000 (union) there is a net pension liability of $5,351,333 (as of 
December 31, 2023-the date of the most recent pension liability valuation). 
 

 
EXPENSES:   
  Operating Expenses were $3.76 per patient day more than budgeted for the 

month resulting in a flexed unfavorable variance of $19,518.  This compares to 
3.83 per patient day and $19,513 variance in July. 

 
 Once again, all of the over budget expenses were offset by the Recruitment and 

Retention Grant and the Direct Care Worker Wage Reimbursement payments.  
Cost control measures and initiatives remain an organizational focus.  Legal fees 
recorded in August totaled $11,125.  

 
NET INCOME/LOSS: 

Grand Traverse Medical Care produced net income of $1,122,407 for the month, 
which was $1,124,487 better than budgeted.  
 

RECEIVABLES: 
Days Revenue Outstanding (“DRO”) is 60 days as of 8/31/2024.  This is up 6 
days from 7/31/2024.  Our goal for 2024 is to reduce that number to 45 days.   
 
Most of the increase ($265k) is due to a portion of Medicare and Medicare 
Advantage claims not paying when initially submitted.  This requires reworking 
the claims.  We have engaged a former employee to assist with that process. 
 
Private pay collections continue to go well with a decrease of $30k during the 
month. 
 

Page 22 of 42



4 

 

The amount outstanding waiting Medicaid approval of applications (Medicaid 
Pending) at the end of August is $303,096 (an increase of $50k).  These 
amounts will be paid after Medicaid is approved.  
 
Amounts due for cottage rents and services increased by $104k in August.  This 
is due to the timing of receipt of payment from PACE North (we have sense 
received two payments), delay in billing the Medicaid Waiver programs and the 
late issuance of invoices in August (they went out on the 13th of the month).  We 
have identified and implemented software improvements to improve the 
timeliness of billing. The Residential Services Director is involved in remediating 
this problem. 
 
Wisconsin Physician Services (“WPS”), GTP’s Outpatient Medicare intermediary 
has continued to send us small payments but still owes us $44k.  In order to 
receive regular payments, our application for recertification must be approved by 
them.  After a couple of attempts, we have received approval to login to their 
website.   We are working to correct (or begin again, if necessary) the 
recertification application. 
 
During July Priority Health responded to our inquiries regarding the problems 
with processing our outpatient commercial Insurance claims.  They instructed us 
to bill on a Form 1500 instead of the UB Claim form that has worked successfully 
for years.  On July 23 we submitted one claim on Form 1500 which our claims 
processing software indicated was “accepted”.  On September 13 we received 
the Priority Health remittance advise along with a payment for that outpatient 
services claim.  On September 16 we rebilled the outstanding Priority Health 
commercial outpatient claims were rebilled using the Form 1500 and we expect 
payment in October of $39k. 
 
Our billing specialist resigned with short notice to move back downstate to care 
for her mother.  Our former biller graciously stepped in beginning September 5.  
We have a new Business Account Manager beginning orientation on September 
30.  
 
 

The Cottages 
 
REVENUE:  

Total revenue of $298,806 generated a $36,106 unfavorable variance to the 
budget.    
 
The average leased occupancy for the Cottages-Assisted Living was 53 
apartments (plus 2 spouses) during the month (8 below budget, one higher than 
the prior month), representing 68% occupancy.  In addition, there were 178 days 
(average of 6 per night) of overnight respite provided during the month (39 more 

Page 23 of 42



5 

 

than the prior month).   Hawthorn Lofts-Independent Living average census was 
2 residents per day for 67% occupancy. Total average census of 63 residents. 
 
We provided housing and care for an average of four residents who are Medicaid 
Waiver participants who pay less than our standard rates.  As of October 1 there 
will only be one waiver participant. 

 
 
 
EXPENSES:  

Expenses for August (before depreciation) were $296,594 which was above the 
budgeted amount by $41,132 for an unfavorable variance.  
 
 

NET INCOME/LOSS: 
The program had a net loss for the month of $22,110 resulting in an unfavorable 
variance of $77,238. 
 
Occupancy continues to increase in September.   
 
 

Unassigned Fund Balance 
 

Approved 2024 Operating Budget       $ 28.7M   
Unassigned Fund Balance Target Percentage                20% 
Unassigned Fund Balance Target Amount                 $5.7M 
Current Unassigned Fund Balance*          $3.5M 
Current Fund Balance as a percentage of Operating Budget         12%  
Amount Available Above/ (Below) Target      ($2.2)M 
 
*Fund balance is different from a cash balance as it includes other assets and is net of 
current liabilities.  Those items do not generally change significantly so we are reporting 
here on the cash balance amount.  The policy requires a review of the actual fund 
balance annually. 

Page 24 of 42



Page 25 of 42



Page 26 of 42



Page 27 of 42



Page 28 of 42



Page 29 of 42



Page 30 of 42



Page 31 of 42



Page 32 of 42



Page 33 of 42



Page 34 of 42



Page 35 of 42



Page 36 of 42



Page 37 of 42



Page 38 of 42



Page 39 of 42

dgratton
Text Box
7



Page 40 of 42



Page 41 of 42



Page 42 of 42

dgratton
Text Box

dgratton
Text Box

dgratton
Text Box
8


